
 
PERKASIE BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
 Agenda for Council Meeting of January 16, 2023 
 

1. Meeting Convenes – Council Meeting Room 7:00 PM  
2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance – Mayor Hollenbach 
3. Attendance 
4. Public Forum 
5. President's Remarks 
6. Interview Council Applicants 
7. Approval of Minutes of Meeting, 

A.   Council, December 19, 2022 
B.  Committee, January 3, 2023 

8. Correspondence and Reports 
A. Mayor's Report 
B. Taxes Collected 
C. Budget Status 
D. Engineer's Report 
E. Planning Commission Report 
F. Zoning Hearing Board Report 
G. Police Report 
H. Fire Department Update 

9. Unfinished Business 
10. New Business   

A. Public Works Committee Items 
1. Superintendent’s Report 
2. Consider Resolution #2023-3 – Rescind Handicap Parking Space at 14 South 8th 

Street 
B. Public Utility Committee Items  

1. Superintendent’s Report 
C. Planning and Zoning Committee Items 

1. Code Enforcement Officer’s Report 
2. Consider Land Development Agreement & Financial Security Agreement (Set-

Aside) for The Delbar Apartments 
D. Park and Recreation Committee Items 

1. Park and Recreation Director Report 
2. Consider Event Application – 2023 Upper Bucks Celtic Festival 

E. Personnel and Policy Committee Items 
1. Consider Resolution #2023-4 – Appointment to Council 
2. Consider Appointments to Various Boards & Committees 

A. Four 4-year Terms to the Perkasie Planning Commission 
B. One 5-year Term as a Member to the Zoning Hearing Board 
C. Two 3-year Terms as Alternates to the Zoning Hearing Board 
D. One 6-year Term to the Civil Service Commission 
E. One 5-year Term to the Perkasie Regional Authority Board 
F. One 1-year Term to the Vacancy Board 
G. Three 3-year Terms to the Perkasie Park & Recreation Board 



H. One Youth Delegate to the Perkasie Park & Recreation Board 
I. One 5-year Term to the Property Maintenance Code Board of Appeals 

3. Police Department Requests for Vacation Carry Over 
4. Consider Authorizing the Chief of Police to Consulting Position 

F. Finance Committee Items 
1. Payment of the Bills 
2. Consider Resolution #2023-2 – Revised Wage Schedule for 2023 

G. Economic Development Committee Items 
1. Community Development Manager Report 

H. Public Safety Committee Items 
1.  

I. Historical Committee Items 
1. 

11. Other New Business 
12. Report from Youth Councilor 
13. Public Forum 
14. Press Forum  
15. Executive Session – Matters of Personnel 
16. Adjournment 
 
        Next Meeting:  Borough Council, Monday, February 6, 2023 – 7:00 PM  

 
 
Perkasie Borough Council agendas are available via e-mail in advance of the meetings.  Please send any 
agenda requests to: admin@perkasieborough.org.  The agendas are also available on our website at 
www.perkasieborough.org. 
  
As of the October 3, 2022 meeting, Perkasie Borough Council meeting packets are now available on 
our website at www.perkasieborough.org. 
 

 
 

 



 

 1

MINUTES OF PERKASIE BOROUGH 
COUNCIL MEETING 
DECEMBER 19, 2022 

 
        620 West Chestnut Street  
        Perkasie, Pennsylvania 
 
ATTENDANCE: 
Council Member:     Scott Bomboy 
        Chuck Brooks     
        Aaron Clark   
        Randy Faulkner    
        Jim Purcell 
       Steve Rose 
       Jim Ryder 
       Dave Weaver 
       Dave Worthington 
Youth Councilor:     Robin Reid 
Borough Manager:     Andrea L. Coaxum (Absent) 
Finance Director:     Rebecca Deemer 
Borough Solicitor:     Jeff Garton, Esq. 
Mayor:       Jeff Hollenbach 
Parks and Recreation Director:   Lauren Moll  
Community Development Manager:   Linda Reid 
Borough Engineer:     Doug Rossino  
Police Chief:      Robert Schurr 
Electric Superintendent:    Harold Stone (Absent) 
Public Works Director:    Jeff Tulone  
         
 Borough Council President Jim Ryder convened the meeting at 7:00 PM.  Mayor 
Hollenbach gave an invocation followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
SWEARING IN OF NEW PATROL OFFICER 
 
 Mayor Hollenbach swore in Officer Sean Jeffries, the new patrol officer for the Borough. 
 
PUBLIC FORUM  
 
 Nothing at this time. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING – DRAFT ORDINANCE FOR ELECTRIC RATES 
 
 A Public Hearing was held to consider adopting an ordinance that would further amend 
Chapter 85 of the Code of Ordinances of the Borough of Perkasie, titled “Electric Service” being 
Ordinance 546, enacted April 9, 1984, and as amended.  The ordinance was advertised 
appropriately. 
 
 There were no comments from the public.  Upon a motion by Brooks, seconded by Purcell, 
the Public Hearing was closed. 



 

 2

PRESIDENT'S REMARKS 
 
 Council President Ryder commended the Police Department for all of their work on the 
recent disappearance case in Sellersville. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 Upon a motion by Purcell, seconded by Rose, Council unanimously approved the Council 
meeting minutes from November 21, 2022 and the Committee meeting minutes from December 5, 
2022.                  
        
CORRESPONDENCE AND REPORTS 
 
Mayor's Report 
 
 Mayor Hollenbach expressed his appreciation to the Police Department for the all of their 
hard work on the recent disappearance case and wished everyone a Merry Christmas. 
  
Taxes Collected 
 
 Upon a motion by Purcell, seconded by Worthington, Council unanimously accepted the 
report of taxes collected for November, 2022. 
 
Budget Status 
 
 Upon a motion by Purcell, seconded by Brooks, Council unanimously accepted the budget 
status report for November, 2022. 
 
Engineer's Report 
 
 Upon a motion by Rose, seconded by Purcell, Council unanimously accepted the 
Engineer’s monthly report for the month of November, 2022. 
 
Planning Commission Report 
  
 The Planning Commission did not meet in November so there was nothing new to report. 
 
Zoning Hearing Board Report 
 
 Council reviewed the recent Zoning Hearing Board decision pertaining to St. Stephen’s 
Church. 
 
Police Report 
 
 Upon a motion by Rose, seconded by Faulkner, Council unanimously accepted the Police 
Department report for November, 2022.   
 
Fire Department Report 
 



 

 3

No updates were provided at this time. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 
 
Review of Superintendent's Report 
 
 The Committee reviewed and accepted the Public Works Superintendent’s report for 
November, 2022.   
 
Consider Extension of Commingled Recycling Contract with J.P. Mascaro & Sons – Correction  
 
 Upon a motion by Rose, seconded by Purcell, Council unanimously approved a one-year 
contract extension for 2023 for commingled recyclables with J.P. Mascaro & Sons with the 
corrected price as follows:  $140.00 per month for a 40-yard dumpster, $200.00 hauling cost per 
trip and $95.00 per ton disposal cost for commingled recyclables. 
 
PUBLIC UTILITY COMMITTEE 
 
Review of Superintendent's Report 
 
 The Committee reviewed and accepted the Electric Superintendent’s report for November, 
2022.   
 
Consider Ordinance to Set 2023 Electric Rates 
 
 Upon a motion by Purcell, seconded by Faulkner, Council approved an ordinance that will 
amend the provisions of Chapter 85 of the Perkasie Borough Code titled “Electric Service” being 
Ordinance 546, enacted April 9, 1984, and as amended. 
 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMITTEE 
 
Code Enforcement Officer Report 
 
 The Committee reviewed and accepted the Code Enforcement Officer’s monthly report for 
November, 2022. 
 
Consider Resolution #2022-63, Cedar Ridge Escrow Release 
 
 Upon a motion by Faulkner, seconded by Brooks, Council approved Resolution #2022-63, 
a resolution of the Perkasie Borough Council authorizing a reduction in the escrow for the Cedar 
Ridge project as approved by Gilmore & Associates, Inc., in the amount of $127,098.81 to reduce 
the total escrow to $110,396.52, and authorizing the signature of the Borough Manager on the 
escrow reduction. 
 
PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE 
 
Parks and Recreation Director Report 



 

 4

 The Committee reviewed and accepted the Parks and Recreation Director’s report for 
November, 2022. 
 
PERSONNEL AND POLICY COMMITTEE 
 
Review Appointments to Boards and Commissions for 2023 
 
 Council reviewed the applications received to date for the various Boards and 
Commissions.  At this time, the Borough is still collecting applications for Council to consider. 
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE  
 
Authorization to Pay Bills 
 
 Upon a motion by Purcell, seconded by Faulkner, Council unanimously authorized 
payment of the bills as presented. 
 
Consider Resolution #2022-65 – Approval of the 2023 Budget 
 
 Upon a motion by Faulkner, seconded by Rose, Council approved Resolution #2022-65, 
adopting the 2023 Budget. 
 
Consider Resolution #2022-64 – Setting the Tax Rate for 2023 
  

Upon a motion by Brooks, seconded by Clark, Council approved Resolution #2022-64, a 
resolution of Perkasie Borough Council that establishes the tax rate for 2023. 
 
Consider Resolution #2022-61 – Consolidated Fee Schedule for 2023 
 
 Upon a motion by Faulkner, seconded by Rose, Council approved Resolution #2022-61, a 
resolution of Perkasie Borough Council that establishes the Consolidated Fee Schedule for 2023. 
 
Consider Resolution #2022-60 – Salary & Wage Schedule for 2023 
 
 Upon a motion by Brooks, seconded by Worthington, Council approved Resolution #2022-
60, a resolution of Perkasie Borough Council that establishes the Salary & Wage Schedule for 
2023. 
 
Consider Resolution #2022-62 – Council Meeting Dates for 2023 
 
 Upon a motion by Faulkner, seconded by Brooks, Council approved Resolution #2022-62, 
a resolution of Perkasie Borough Council that sets the Council meeting schedule for 2023 with one 
revision:  it was the consensus of Council to not have a meeting on Monday, July 3rd, since the 
holiday is the next day.  There will only be one meeting in July, on July 17, 2023. 
 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
 
Community Development Manager Report 
 



 

 5

 The Committee reviewed and accepted the Community Development Manager’s report 
dated November 30, 2022. 
 
Economic Development Report 
 
 The Committee reviewed and accepted the final Economic Development Report.  Council 
was very complimentary and expressed their appreciation for Steve Barth.  It was the consensus of 
Council that he be recognized at a future meeting for all of his work in the Borough. 
 
PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 
 
Consider Resolution #2022-66 – In-Custody Death Reports 
 
 Upon a motion by Faulkner, seconded by Brooks, Council approved Resolution #2022-66, 
which authorizes the Police Chief to implement Perkasie Borough Police Department Policy 4.16.1 
– In-Custody Death Reports. 
 
Consider Memorandum of Understanding – Bucks County Human Services Co-Responder 
Initiative 
 
 Upon a motion by Rose, seconded by Purcell, Council approved Perkasie Borough’s 
participation in the Bucks County Human Services Co-Responder Initiative, and authorized the 
Council President and Police Chief to sign the Memorandum of Understanding on behalf of 
Perkasie Borough. 
 
Consider Memorandum of Understanding – Bucks County Special Response Team & 
Montgomery County East Region SWAT 
 
 Upon a motion by Faulkner, seconded by Purcell, Council approved Perkasie Borough’s 
participation in the mutual aid initiative between Bucks County Special Response Team and 
Montgomery County East Region SWAT, and authorized the Police Chief to sign the 
Memorandum of Understanding on behalf of Perkasie Borough. 
 
HISTORICAL COMMITTEE 
 
 There was no business to come before the Historical Committee. 
 
OTHER NEW BUSINESS 
 
 Nothing at this time. 
 
PUBLIC FORUM 
 
 Nothing at this time. 
 
PRESS FORUM 
 
 Nothing at this time. 
 



 

 6

REPORT FROM YOUTH COUNCILOR 
 
 Robin Reid reported that there was a recent re-organization of the School Board, and that 
students are getting ready for the holidays with different holiday events. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 The meeting adjourned at 7:33 PM. 
 
 
 
 
                                            
     Andrea L. Coaxum  
        Borough Manager/Secretary 



 

 1

MINUTES OF PERKASIE BOROUGH 
COUNCIL COMMITTEES MEETING 

JANUARY 3, 2023 
 

         620 West Chestnut Street 
         Perkasie, Pennsylvania 
 
ATTENDANCE: 
Council Member:     Scott Bomboy (Absent) 
        Chuck Brooks     
        Randy Faulkner     
       Jim Purcell (Absent) 
       Steve Rose 
       Jim Ryder 
       Dave Weaver 
       Dave Worthington  
Youth Councilor:     Robin Reid (Absent) 
Borough Manager:     Andrea L. Coaxum  
Borough Solicitor:     Jeff Garton, Esq. 
Mayor:       Jeff Hollenbach 
Finance Director:     Rebecca Deemer (Absent) 
Parks and Recreation Director:    Lauren Moll  
Community Development Manager:   Linda Reid (Absent) 
Borough Engineer:     Doug Rossino  
Police Chief:      Robert Schurr 
Electric Superintendent:    Harold Stone (Absent) 
Public Works Director:     Jeff Tulone  
    
  Borough Council President Jim Ryder convened the meeting at 7:00 PM.  Mayor Hollenbach 
gave an invocation followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
PUBLIC FORUM 
 
 Nothing at this time. 
 
PRESIDENT’S REMARKS 
 
 Council President Ryder thanked all of the Borough employees in all departments for the great 
job they do and for caring about people. 
 
PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 
 
Consider Hiring of Full-Time Public Works Employee 
 
 Upon a motion by Brooks, seconded by Faulkner, Council authorized the hiring of Richard 
Hughes as a full-time Public Works employee at an hourly rate of $26.50. 
 
PUBLIC UTILITY COMMITTEE 
 
Perkasie Wholesale Power Cost Summary 
 
 The Committee reviewed Perkasie’s November 2022 Wholesale Power Cost Summary report 



 

 2

provided by GDS Associates.  
 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMITTEE 
 
Discuss Access License Agreement – 606 West Chestnut Street 
 
 The Borough Manager informed Council that this Agreement is still in the process of being 
updated and is not ready for Council approval at this time.  Upon a motion by Rose, seconded by 
Weaver, this item was tabled to a future meeting. 
 
Discuss Land Development Agreement and Stormwater Controls & Best Management Practices 
Operations & Maintenance Agreement for Perry Mill 
 
 Councilman Weaver had some questions about the façade of the buildings.  The Borough 
Manager stated that she does not think the developer will ask for the facades to be changed from what is 
required by the Ordinance.  The apartment portion of this project will remain as 8th Street Commons; the 
rowhome portion of the project will now be called Perry Mill.  Upon a motion by Brooks, seconded by 
Rose, Council authorized the Council President and Borough Manager to sign the Land Development 
Agreement and Stormwater Controls and Best Management Practices Operations and Maintenance 
Agreement for Perry Mill on behalf of Perkasie Borough.  Councilman Faulkner abstained. 
 
Consider Resolution #2023-1 – Escrow Release for JEER, LLC 
 
 Upon a motion by Ryder, seconded by Brooks, Council approved Resolution #2023-1, a 
resolution of the Perkasie Borough Council authorizing a reduction in the escrow for the JEER, LLC 
project as approved by Gilmore & Associates, Inc., in the amount of $29,156.25 to reduce the total 
escrow to $11,593.75, and to authorize the Borough Manager to sign the escrow reduction. 
 
Discuss SEPTA Right of Entry Permit – Freight House 
 
 The Borough Manager reminded Council of their previous discussion in the fall about this Right 
of Entry Permit and their request to staff to ask SEPTA to waive the $1,000 permit fee.  SEPTA has 
requested that Perkasie Borough provide a letter to them stating that Perkasie would have the freight car 
removed, as long as there is no cost to the Borough, for SEPTA waiving this fee.  Upon a motion by 
Ryder, seconded by Faulkner, Council authorized the Solicitor to draft a letter to SEPTA from Perkasie 
Borough stating that Perkasie will have the freight car removed, as long as there is no cost to the 
Borough, for SEPTA waiving the Right of Entry Permit fee. 
 
PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE 
 
 There was nothing to come before the Parks & Recreation Committee. 
 
PERSONNEL AND POLICY COMMITTEE  
 
Resignation of Council Member 
 
 Upon a motion by Brooks, seconded by Ryder, Council accepted the resignation of Councilman 
Aaron Clark, effective immediately, and authorized the staff to advertise for the Council vacancy in the 
newspaper and on the website and social media.  Council has 30 days to fill this vacancy, so they will 
need to appoint a new Council member at the January 16, 2023 meeting.  Councilman Brooks requested 
that someone be appointed to the Parks & Recreation Committee for continuity. 
 



 

 3

FINANCE COMMITTEE 
  

There was no business to come before the Finance Committee. 
 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
 
 There was no business to come before the Economic Development Committee. 
 
PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 
 
 There was no business to come before the Public Safety Committee. 
 
HISTORICAL COMMITTEE 
 
 There was no business to come before the Historical Committee. 
 
REPORT FROM YOUTH COUNCILOR 
  

The Youth Councilor was not present at the meeting.  
 
PUBLIC FORUM 
 
 Mr. Mike Connelly from 103 North Ninth Street stood and introduced himself and asked about 
stormwater controls for the 8th Street Commons project, and whether or not they are putting sidewalks in 
along Ninth Street.  The Engineer stated that there are currently no proposed sidewalks on Ninth Street 
for this project.  The Borough Manager asked Mr. Connelly if she could review the plans with him after 
the meeting adjourned and discuss his questions.  Mr. Connelly agreed. 
 
PRESS FORUM 
 
 Nothing at this time. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 The meeting adjourned at 7:23 PM. 
 
 
 
 
     
         Andrea L. Coaxum  
            Borough Manager/Secretary 



Date:  01/10/2023 Statement of Actual & Estimated Revenue User:  HEATHER

BOROUGH OF PERKASIE

Time:  7:43:09 AM For Period Ending 12/31/2022 Page:  1

Selecting on ACCT from 301 to 310

ACCOUNT ESTIMATED YEAR-TO-DATE ACTUAL YTD

DESCRIPTION REVENUE REVENUE % REALIZED

01.301.100

Real Estate Taxes- Current Year's Levy 435,215.81 425,002.98 97.65

01.301.200

Real Estate Taxes - Prior Year's Levy 3,000.00 1,661.46 55.38

01.301.300

Real Estate Taxes - Delinquent 3,000.00 1,945.61 64.85

01.301.600

Real Estate Taxes - Interim 2,732.16

01.310.100

Real Estate Transfer Tax 250,000.00 396,669.91 158.67

01.310.200

Earned Income Tax 1,550,000.00 1,665,872.45 107.48

01.310.500

Local Services Tax 80,000.00 92,402.15 115.50

01.310.700

Mechanical Device Fee 500.00

Total for Fund: 2,321,715.81 2,586,286.72 111.40

01 (General Fund) 

14.301.100

Real Estate Taxes - Current Year's Levy 137,437.00 134,213.06 97.65

14.301.200

Real Estate Taxes - Prior Year's Levy 300.00 520.95 173.65

14.301.300

Real Estate Taxes- Delinquent 618.22

14.301.600

Real Estate Taxes - Interim 862.84

Total for Fund: 137,737.00 136,215.07 98.90

14 (Fire Tax Protection Fund) 

15.301.100

Real Estate Taxes - Current Year's Levy 274,873.00 266,714.96 97.03

15.301.600

Real Estate Taxes - Interim 1,432.43

Total for Fund: 274,873.00 268,147.39 97.55

15 (Road Improvements Fund) 

Report Totals 2,734,325.81 2,990,649.18 109.37













































 

65 E. Butler Avenue | Suite 100 | New Britain, PA 18901 Phone: 215-345-4330 | Fax: 215-345-8606 

www.gilmore-assoc.com 

PERKASIE BOROUGH 
BOROUGH ENGINEER STATUS REPORT 

FOR OPEN DEVELOPMENT AND MUNICIPAL PROJECTS 
AS OF JANUARY 1, 2023 

 
SUBDIVISION AND LAND DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS (ACTIVE) 

 
1. Perkasie Woods 

499 Constitution Avenue 

• Completed the End of the 18-Month Maintenance Period Inspection. 

• Prepared the 18-Month Maintenance Period Punch List dated December 13, 2022. 

• Miscellaneous correspondence with G&A Staff and Borough Staff. 

• The project is in the 18-month maintenance period set to expire on January 19, 2023. 
 
2. Constitution Square 

108 East Walnut Street 

• Continued the Site Observation. 

• Miscellaneous correspondence with G&A Staff, Borough Staff, Developer, Design Consultant, 
and BCCD. 
 

3. Pennridge Airport Business Park 
1100 North Ridge Road 

• Miscellaneous correspondence with Borough Staff. 
 
4. Spruce Street Townhouses 

W. Spruce Street 

• Miscellaneous correspondence with G&A Staff. 
 
5. Spruce Street Redevelopment 

601 Spruce Street 

• Prepared the Escrow Status Report and Financial Security Escrow Review Letter dated 
December 19, 2022. 

• Reviewed Field Change Request and prepared correspondence with comments to Design 
Consultant dated December 21, 2022. 

• Continued the Site Observation. 

• Miscellaneous coordination and correspondence with G&A Staff, Borough Staff, Solicitor, and 
Developer. 

 
6. Perkasie Green Subdivision 

Ridge Road (S.R.0563) and Park Avenue (S.R.4052) 

• Continued to update Escrow Status Report and finalized Recommendation Letter and 
Certificate of Completion for the Request for Financial Security Escrow Release #14 dated 
December 6, 2022. 

• Miscellaneous coordination and correspondence with G&A Staff, Borough Staff, Solicitor, 
Developer, and HOA Representative. 

 
7. Glen Enterprises Building Permit 

1215 N. Ridge Road 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 



Perkasie Borough Engineer                  Page 2 
Status Report for Open Development and Municipal Projects              As of January 1, 2023 

 

8. Rolftech, LLC Grading Permit 
118 S. 2nd Street 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
9. 8th Street Commons (a.k.a. Shelly’s Lumber) 

N. 8th Street 

• Reviewed the Land Development Agreements and prepared correspondence with comments to 
Solicitor dated December 15, 2022. 

• Reviewed and signed Record Plans at Borough Hall on December 19, 2022. 

• Miscellaneous coordination and correspondence with Borough Staff, Solicitor, PRA Consultant, 
Rowhome Developer, and Design Consultant. 

 
10. Pennrose Building Permit 

1011 N. Ridge Road 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
11. 306 N. Fifth Street Redevelopment (a.k.a. Chant Tract) 

306 N. 5th Street 

• Prepared for and Attended Council Meeting on December 5, 2022 in order to discuss the 
Waiver of Land Development, which was approved by Council. 

 
12. Green Ridge Estates East 

28 North Ridge Road 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
13. 124 S. 3rd Street Building Permit 

124 S. 3rd Street 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
14. Restaurant and Beer Garden 

606 W. Chestnut Street 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
15. 617 W. Blooming Glen Drive Building Permit 

617 W. Blooming Glen Drive 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
16. The Kratz Tract 

N. 5th Street & W. Blooming Glen Drive 

• Reviewed the revised Record Plan in reference to Buildings 1 and 2 and prepared 
correspondence with comments to Design Consultant dated December 8, 2022. 

• Continued the Site Observation. 

• Miscellaneous correspondence with G&A Staff and Design Consultant. 
 
17. Green Ridge Estates West 

414 South Ridge Road 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
18. Griffo Tract Lot 1 

510 Haven Court 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
 
 
 
 



Perkasie Borough Engineer                  Page 3 
Status Report for Open Development and Municipal Projects              As of January 1, 2023 

 

19. Griffo Tract Lot 2 
511 Haven Court 

• Reviewed the revised Final As-Built Plan and prepared the Final As-Built Plan Approval Letter 
dated December 2, 2022.  Also, coordinated the preparation of the Final Certificate of 
Occupancy with Code Inspections, Inc. 

• Continued the Site Observation. 
 
20. 423 E. Market Street Building Permit 

423 E. Market Street 

• Project is complete and shall be removed from next Status Report. 
 
21. 900 N. Ridge Road Building Permit 

900 N. Ridge Road 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
22. 106 & 108 N. 7th Street 

106 & 108 N. 7th Street 

• Reviewed all required documentation, Certified Quantities, Updated Escrow Status Report, and 
Prepared Recommendation Letter and Certificate of Completion for the Request for Financial 
Security Escrow Release #1 dated December 15, 2022. 

• Continued the Site Observation. 

• Miscellaneous correspondence with G&A Staff. 
 
23. 65 S. Main Street 

65 S. Main Street 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
24. 200 S. Main Street 

200 S. Main Street 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
25. 1229 N. Ridge Road 

1229 N. Ridge Road 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
26. Perkasie Regional Authority – Reservoir Replacement 

N. Ridge Road & Ridge Avenue 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
27. 545 Constitution Avenue 

545 Constitution Avenue 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
28. 601 W. Park Avenue 

601 W. Park Avenue 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
29. 911 N. 7th Street 

911 N. 7th Street 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
SUBDIVISION AND LAND DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS (INACTIVE) 
 
1. Hidden Meadow (Originally Kratz Subdivision) 

South Main Street 

• The project is in the 18-month maintenance period set to expire on April 17, 2024. 



Perkasie Borough Engineer                  Page 4 
Status Report for Open Development and Municipal Projects              As of January 1, 2023 

 

2. 208 Ridge Avenue Subdivision 
208 Ridge Avenue 

• The project is in the 18-month maintenance period set to expire in April of 2024. 
 
3. The Perk Restaurant Addition 

501 E. Walnut Street 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 

4. Perkasie Square Shopping Center Minor Subdivision 
505 Constitution Avenue 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
5. Jelski Minor Subdivision 

11 Fairview Avenue 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
6. Piper Group Land Development 

Ridge Road (S.R.0563) 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
7. Tecce Subdivision 

North Ridge Road 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
GENERAL BOROUGH PROJECTS 
 
1. NPDES MS4, Phase II 

Borough Wide 
• Survey Department continued to conduct a complete survey of a portion of the Pleasant Spring Creek. 

• Prepared Existing Features Plan. 

• Miscellaneous coordination and correspondence with G&A Staff, Borough Staff and Resident. 
 

2. 2022 Road Program 
Borough Wide 

• Reviewed additional documentation, including closeout documents and Weekly Payroll 
Certifications, from Concrete Contractor, prepared Application for Payment Request #2-Final 
and Change Order #1-Final Letter for the 2022 Concrete Program, assembled application 
package dated December 8, 2022 and emailed package to Borough. 

• Finalized the MS-999 Final Completion Report for the 2022 Road Program and submitted to 
PennDOT Municipal Services. 

• Miscellaneous coordination and correspondence with G&A Staff, Borough Staff and 
Contractors. 

 
3. Public Works Facility 

311 South 9th Street 

• Attended Meeting at Public Works Yard on December 7, 2022 with Borough Staff to discuss 
traffic circulation around Recycling Center. 

• Miscellaneous correspondence with Borough Staff. 
 
4. 2022 Multimodal Transportation Fund Program 

S. 7th Street and S. 9th Street 

• Project is complete and shall be removed from next Status Report. 
 
5. Lenape Park Amphitheater Improvements 

Lenape Park 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 



Perkasie Borough Engineer                  Page 5 
Status Report for Open Development and Municipal Projects              As of January 1, 2023 

 

6. Zoning Services 

• Miscellaneous correspondence with Borough Staff. 
 
7. DCNR Multifunctional Riparian Buffer Grant 

Borough Wide 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
8. Green Light - Go Grant 

S. 5th Street and W. Walnut Street 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
9. Perkasie Covered Bridge 

Lenape Park 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
10. SEPTA Freight House Parcel 

W. Market Street and N. 8th Street 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 

11. W. Park Avenue Improvements 
W. Park Avenue 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
12. W. Market Street Traffic Study 

W. Market Street 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 

13. S.R. 4039 Concrete Program 
S.R. 4039 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
14. Hazard Mitigation Grant Program 

Borough Wide 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
15. Stream Evaluation for East Branch Perkiomen Creek 

East Branch Perkiomen Creek 

• No action has taken place by G&A this month. 
 
16. S. 7th Street Endwall Project 

S. 7th Street Culvert 

• Structural Department prepared Report on Initial Condition Assessment for 7th Street Culvert 
dated December 28, 2022. 

• Miscellaneous coordination and correspondence with G&A Staff and Borough Staff. 
 
17. Misc. Consulting Services 

• Site Visit to alley between N. 5th and N. 6th Streets on December 5, 2022 with Borough 
Manager to analyze storm sewer system for possible grant. 

• Prepared Traffic Signal Plan for the intersection of E. Walnut Street and N. Main Street in order 
to incorporate the pavement markings for the loading zone in front of The Perk Restaurant. 

• Prepared Traffic Signal Plan Submission Package and submitted to PennDOT on December 
15, 2022. 

• Revised Private Well Location Map to include water and sewer information from GIS system. 

• Prepared for and Attended Council Meeting on December 19, 2022. 

• Miscellaneous coordination and correspondence with G&A Staff, Borough Staff & Elected Officials. 



















ZONING OFFICER SUMMARY 

 

Appeal No.:    2023-1 

 

Hearing Date:    January 23, 2023 

 

Appellant:   Benjamin S. Stutzman 

 

Property Address:  402 W. Callowhill Street 

 

Tax Parcel #: 33-006-109    Zoning District:  R-2 

 

Background:  The Appellant, Benjamin S. Stutzman, is the Owner of Legal Title of Tax 

Parcel No. 33-006-109 located at 402 W. Callowhill Street near the intersection of N. 5th 

Street and W. Callowhill Street in Perkasie Borough, PA.  The subject property contains one 

(1) structure with the current use of a “Single-Family Detached Dwelling” (B1), which is a 

use permitted by right in the R-2 Zoning District.  The Appellant proposes to convert the 

dwelling into a duplex (Use B2(b)) by converting the basement into an apartment through 

Residential Conversion.  The Zoning Ordinance requires a total of four (4) off-street parking 

stalls for one (1) 2-bedroom dwelling unit and one (1) 3-bedroom dwelling unit.  Based on 

aerial photography, the existing concrete parking area on the site appears to accommodate 

four (4) parking stalls each with a width of eight (8) feet.  The Zoning Ordinance also 

requires all off-street parking facilities with a capacity of three (3) or more vehicles to 

contain parking space widths of no less than 10 feet. 

 

The subject property is located within the Two Family Residential (R-2) Zoning District and 

the surrounding properties within 100 feet are located within the Two Family Residential (R-

2) and Single Family Residential (R-1B) Zoning Districts.  The parcel currently contains a 

use permitted by right.  The intended use is a “Residential Conversion” (B6) residential use, 

which is a use permitted as a Special Exception in the R-2 Zoning District.  According to 

FEMA map 42017C0143J, dated March 16, 2015, the site is not located within a 100-year 

floodplain. 

 

In order to accomplish the items noted above, the Appellant is requesting a Special Exception 

and variance from the Borough’s Zoning Ordinance.  The Special Exception is to permit the 

“Residential Conversion” (B6) use, while the variance is to reduce the required off-street 

parking space width. 

 

Request Zoning Relief: The Appellant is seeking a Special Exception and variance from the 

following sections of the Zoning Ordinance: §186-20.C.(1)(c) and §186-70.A. 

 

This property   � has   has not   been the subject of a prior zoning application(s) or 

appeal(s). 

 

Date: January 5, 2023    _________________________ 
       Zoning Officer 





















































































































PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT 
MONTHLY REPORT 
December 2022 
 

 

RECREATION 

• Sold out on your own New York City bus trip.  Trip ran Saturday, 12/10.  Received feedback from 
passengers on other locations for future trips. 

• Both Santa House visits were a huge success.  Santa saw hundreds of children over the course of 
those two dates for free meet and greet visits.   

• New Santa Stops on the Santa Run was also a huge success.  By setting designated Santa view points 
community members were able to gather together and wait for Santa, similar to school bus stops, and 
this allowed the Electric Department to shorten the route.   

• New Storytime with Santa program included arts and crafts, story time with milk and cookies, and photo 
opportunity also sold out.  Had great feedback from participants and Santa and will run again in 2023. 

• The Giving Tree located in Perkasie Borough Hall received many hats, mittens, and scarves from 
community members and was donated to local organization, Fish. 

• Upcoming School’s 
Out day camp 
scheduled for Monday, 
1/23 has good 
registrations numbers.  
Will continue to 
promote. 

• Working on additional 
programs such as ARC 
Babysitting in March, 
Medicare Workshop in 
April, and a possible 
monthly walking club. 

• Scheduling has begun 
for summer camps as 
well.  Currently we 
have 4 weeks of 
summer camps 
scheduled in varying 
interest. 

PARK INFORMATION 

• Public Works removed trees in the park 
system. 

• Continue to work with MyRec registration 
system on different ways to move forward with 
online park pavilion reservation requests. 

• Continued work on updating agreements 
between Perkasie Borough and Pennridge 
Little League regarding the complex in Lenape 
Park 

 

 



MENLO AQUATIC CENTER 

• Sold $150 worth of holiday gift certificates to be used toward 2023 Menlo Memberships.  Didn’t promote 
very much due to the fact we are unsure yet how the use of the gift certificates purchased in 2022 
would affect the record keeping of sales of memberships in 2023.  Will review again once gift 
certificates are used. 

• Working on scheduling for upcoming season which includes themed days, Member’s only swim times, 
and aquatic fitness classes. 

• Memberships go on sale 1/15 and have already received interest from the community to register. 

• Updated all registration information on the website to be more inclusive and informative, including pdf 
‘How To’ for registration. 

MEETINGS 

• Attended After Events & Earth Day Meeting – 12/14 

• Met with Gilmore & Assoc – 12/15 

• Attended PRPS CPRP Workshop – 12/20 



RESOLUTION #2023-4 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOROUGH OF PERKASIE 
APPOINTMENT TO FILL BOROUGH COUNCIL VACANCY 

 
 
WHEREAS, a vacancy was created on Borough Council by the resignation of Second 
 
Ward Representative Aaron Clark effective January 2, 2023; and 
 
 
WHEREAS, Borough Council has thirty days from the date a vacancy is created on  
 
Council to fill that vacancy; and 
 
 
WHEREAS, Borough Council advertised for applicants from the Second Ward to fill  
 
the vacancy and considered qualified applicants. 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Perkasie Borough Council at its  
 
meeting of January 16, 2023 appointed __________________of_______________________,  
 
Perkasie to Borough Council as a Second Ward representative to serve until a successor is 
 
elected at the next municipal election in November, 2023. 
 
 
RESOLVED, this 16th day of January, 2023. 
 
 
 
      BOROUGH OF PERKASIE 
 
 
 
      By:_______________________________ 
            James Ryder, President  
       
 
 
Attest:___________________________ 
          Andrea L. Coaxum  
           Borough Manager 













































       
 

  
RESOLUTION #2023-2 

 
A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE WAGE SCHEDULE FOR 

PERKASIE BOROUGH EMPLOYEES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2023 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, that beginning January 1, 2023 the approved base salaries or wages    
       of certain positions be established in accordance with the following schedule: 
     
Administration                      As of January 1, 2022  As of January 1, 2023 
Borough Manager          Per Contract              Per Contract 
Finance Director   $103,000   $106,090 
Executive Assistant   $62,088   $62,088 
Acctg. & Municipal Permits Clerk $51,875   $53,431 
Utility Billing Rep   $51,922   $53,480 
Accounts Receivable Rep.  $61,801   $63,655 
Code Administrator              $52,250   $53,817 
Community Development Director    $71,720   $73,872 
Special Events Assistant  $17.00/hour   $17.51/hour 
 
Police 
Police Chief             $133,644              $137,987 
Secretary    $46,644   $48,043 
Records/Admin Assistant  $58,401   $60,153 
School Crossing Guard             $16.50-$18.00/hour  $17.00-$18.54/hour 
 
Public Works 
Public Works Director  $82,752   $85,235 
Public Works Foreman  $31.62/hour   $32.65/hour 
Equipment Operator-A  $26.24-$29.07/hour  $27.09-$30.01/hour  
Equipment Operator-B  $23.38/hour     $24.14/hour   
Truck Driver-A              $25.67-$28.52/hour    $26.50-$29.45/hour   
Truck Driver-B              $22.82/hour     $23.56/hour   
Laborer-Permanent                          $17.82/hour     $18.40/hour   
Laborer-Temporary   $16.75/hour   $17.29/hour  
 
Electric Department 
Electric Superintendent  $120,138              $123,742 
Electric Line Supervisor (Foreman) $52.05/hour     $53.74/hour   
Electric Line Worker 1st Class $48.95/hour      $50.54/hour    
Electric Line Worker 2nd Class $41.61/hour      $42.96/hour    
Electric Line Worker 3rd Class $34.27/hour      $35.38/hour    
Electric Helper/Ground Hand             $29.37/hour      $30.32/hour    
 
 
   



 
Recreation                                   As of January 1, 2022       As of January 1, 2023 
Park & Recreation Director  $75,190   $85,235 
Aquatic Facilities & Program Mgr. $     -    $50,000  
Aquatics Supervisor              $25.00-$30.00/hour  $25.00 - $30.00/hour 
Assistant Aquatics Supervisor $19.00-$20.00/hour  $19.00 - $20.00/hour 
Head Life Guard   $17.00-$18.00/hour   $17.00 - $18.00/hour 
Life Guard - New               $15.00/hour   $15.00/hour 
Life Guard - 2nd year   $15.25/hour   $15.25/hour 
Life Guard - 3rd year    $15.50/hour   $15.50/hour 
Life Guard - 4th year    $15.75/hour   $15.75/hour 
Life Guard - 5th + year  $16.00/hour   $16.00/hour 
Swim Instructor   $15.00/hour   $15.00/hour 
Swim Instructor Differential              $.50/hour   $.50/hour 
Front Desk - Supervisor   $15.00/hour   $15.00 - $16.00/hour 
Front Desk - New              $13.00/hour   $13.00/hour 
Front Desk - 2nd Year             $13.25/hour   $13.25hour 
Front Desk - 3rd Year              $13.50/hour   $13.50/hour 
Front Desk - 4th + year  $14.00/hour   $14.00/hour 
Deck Attendant - New             $10.00/hour   $10.00/hour 
Deck Attendant - 2nd Year  $10.25/hour   $10.25/hour 
Deck Attendant - 3rd + Year  $10.50/hour   $10.50/hour 
Recreation Prog Mgr/Director          $12.50-$15.50/hour  $12.50 - $15.50/hour 
Recreation Program Assistant   $8.75-$10.25/hour  $8.75 - $10.25/hour 
 
 
Emergency Management Coordinator  $3,000.00 
 
 
 
 
Approved this 16th day of January, 2023. 
 
 
 
      By: ________________________________ 
                Council President 
                  James A. Ryder 
 
Attest: __________________________ 

   Borough Manager/Secretary 
          Andrea L. Coaxum 



COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT REPORT 

AS OF DECEMBER 31st, 2022 

1. ADOPTING INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE 2018: Reviewing exceptions and 

amendments in existing ordinance (BOCA 1993) against IPMC 2018. Reviewing sample 

ordinance. Will have recommendation Jan 2022.  

 

2. ADOPTING PA UNIFORM CONSTRUCTION CODE 2018  

• Project complete. Borough Code adopts UCC as and when it updates.  

 

3. BUILDING & ZONING PERMIT FEES 

• Project complete. Building & zoning permit fees restored to regular fee.  

 

4. LAND DEVELOPMENT  

• Glassworks: received waiver from land development. 

• Methodist Church: scheduled for Zoning Hearing Board in January. 

 

5. 902 RECYCLING GRANT 2020 / RECYCLING CENTER REORGANIZATION 

• Upcoming visit to the Theis-Cornfeld Recycling Center, Bethlehem (with Jeff & Rebecca) in 

January. Examining strategy and practices around source separation. 

• Posted FB & Instagram information to residents regarding reorganization at Recycling 

Center. Positive resident feedback:  “… setup very well. It seems much safer. Nice how you 

are required to back in a spot instead of a random park job.” 

• Resident postcard in development / on hold until potential changes to curbside collection 

are finalized.    

 

6. 902 RECYCLING GRANT 2022 / 2020 OVERAGES, CHIPPER, LEAF VACUUM 

• Grant application submitted in October. No action in December. 

 

7. WELCOME PACKET 

• Reviewed “Welcome Packets” provided to residents by other municipalities 

 

8. UPDATING WEBSITE CONTENT 

• Department Heads are reviewing website content.   

 

9. RESIDENT / CODE ENFORCEMENT ISSUES 

• Handling resident issues / code enforcement escalation as needed 

 

10. OUTDOOR DINING ORDINANCE 

• Assessing current outdoor dining practices of all Borough businesses. Setting up 

conversations to discuss where necessary.  

• Reviewed outdoor dining ordinances in other municipalities. Perkasie should consider 

extending Outdoor Dining Ordinance to include specific language regarding “sidewalk 

dining”, where establishments use the public sidewalk for sales/seating.  



 

11. FOOD TRUCKS / TRANSIENT RETAIL ORDINANCE 

• Reviewed food truck / mobile food vendor ordinances in Lansdale, Doylestown & 

Hellertown Boroughs. Recommending an update to Perkasie’s ordinance regarding 

Transient Retail Operators to include specific language regarding food trucks / mobile food 

vendors.   

 

12. SPECIAL EVENT / OUTDOOR EVENT SPACE ORDINANCE 

• Reviewing Special Events ordinances in other Boroughs.  

 

13. BUSINESS UPDATES / ISSUES 

• Tracking new business submissions to DEP per our newly designed process with PRA/PWTA. 

While we have received violations for past transgressions, the new process appears to be 

working smoothly.  

• Edward Jones lease for 1st floor is fully executed. They are working through building / zoning 

permits for fit out and signage in Borough Hall first floor.  

• Painted Sprigs on W. Market St is working through final paperwork for their U&O.  

• Highly Mystical Creations plans their Grand Opening on Sunday January 8th.  

• Vita Essentials Salon (S. 6th St) is waiting on DEP mailer before we can issue U&O.  

• Modern Male & PSI Performance have U&O applications in and mailers in to DEP.  

 

14. PERKASIE TOWNE IMPROVEMENT ASSOCIATION 

• “Winter Wanderland” is planned to encourage visitors to town on Jan 28th. Perkasie Ale Trail 

includes bars / breweries and takes place on 1/28/2023.  “Love Local Perkasie” is a month-

long promotion encouraging shopping & dining in town through February. First Fridays 

resume April 7th.  

• Attended monthly Board meeting.  

 

15. AMP SCHOLARSHIPS 

• Council nominated Robin Reid as Perkasie’s candidate at their meeting on 12/5/22.  

 

16. PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT / CONFERENCES 

• No action in December.  

 

17. COMMUNITY EVENTS / PERKASIE BOROUGH 

• Annual Sponsor Commitment forms went out to our biggest supporters. The commitment 

forms include a summary of our various community events and ways to get involved.  

• The Winter Food Market at the fire hall both took place on 12/9. No market on 12/24. 

January markets are scheduled 1/14/23 and 1/28/23. Working to cross promote with 

Borough businesses.  

• Huge success for America’s Oldest Tree Lighting. Post event coverage in Perkasie News 

Herald. Countless examples of positive community feedback in person and on social media.  



• We held Horse & Carriage Rides in the center of town on 12/10/22. We expect to continue 

this as a new annual tradition. Rides coincided with the Winter Food Market and a visit by 

Santa to his house – making for another festive occasion for our town center businesses.    

• Held Initial meeting for Earth Day 2023. Event will be 1pm-4pm on Sunday April 23rd. 

Exhibitor registration is open. Live music is booked. Pennsylvania WoodMobile will attend. 

Perkasie’s Thrivent Financial will sponsor free onsite shredding service.  

• The Memorial Day Parade & Service will take place in Sellersville on Saturday May 27th, 

2023. No action.  

• Early exhibitor registration continues for vendors for the 2023 season of the Perkasie 

Farmers Market.  

• We are assessing applications from musicians for the 2023 season of the Summer Concert 

Series. We have 2 musicians confirmed already.  

 

18. COMMUNITY EVENTS / 3RD PARTY 

• Received an event permit application for the Celtic Festival (Upper Bucks Chamber of 

Commerce/ Saturday March 18th). 

• Awaiting event permit applications for town center festivals: PorchFest (PTIA/April); Art in 

the Park (Pennridge Improvement Project / May); The Craftery Market (Craftery/November) 

• Plan to attend Community Day planning meeting (Rotary/January).  

 

19. MISC 

• Resident communication through FB, Instagram and website postings as necessary.  

 



Perkasie Borough Council accepts resignation 
of Councilman Aaron Clark 
 
By JOHN WORTHINGTON | jworthington@montgomerynews.com | 
 

PUBLISHED: January 4, 2023 at 3:48 p.m. | UPDATED: January 4, 2023 at 3:51 p.m. 

PERKASIE — The Perkasie Borough Council accepted a letter of resignation from 
councilman Aaron Clark of Ward 2 in a brief procedural meeting Tuesday evening. 

Clark first took office in 2017 and ran for mayor in 2021. Council will consider a 
replacement at the next meeting on January 16. 
 
Turning to other business, Council signed a land development agreement for Perry 
Mill, an upcoming rowhome development on Eighth Street. 
 
Concerned about the project’s implications for resident safety, Mike Connelly of Ninth 
Street inquired about plans to install sidewalks on Arch Street where rowhome 
inhabitants are expected to access the development. Council confirmed that there are 
currently no public improvement plans off-site but committed to discussing the 
proposal moving forward. 
 
Council additionally hired a new full-time public works employee, agreed to remove a 
freight train car from the railroad tracks in exchange for SEPTA waiving its right-of-
entry fee and tabled a resolution to consider an access license agreement for the 
Ram’s Pint House due to the need for further modifications. 
 
Mayor Jeff Hollenbach also took time to say a prayer for Damar Hamlin, a Buffalo Bills 
football player who collapsed on the field during a Monday night NFL game the 
previous night watched by many on national TV and is currently hospitalized in critical 
condition. 
 
The next Perkasie Borough Council meeting is on January 16. For more information, visit 
perkasieborough.org. 
 


	2023_01_16 Agenda
	Agenda Item 7A - Dec 19 Council Min
	Agenda Item 7B - Jan 3 Comm Min
	Agenda Item 8B - Taxes Collected
	Agenda Item 8C - Budget Status
	Agenda Item 8D - Engineer's Rpt
	Agenda Item 8F - Nov 2022 ZHB Min
	Agenda Item 8F - 402 W Callowhill ZHB Appl
	Agenda Item 8F - 402 W Callowhill ZO Summary
	Agenda Item 8G - Police Dept Report
	Agenda Item 8H - Nov 2022 Fire Dept Report
	Agenda Item 10A1 - Pub Wks Dir Rpt
	Agenda Item 10A2 - Res 2023-3 - Rescind Handicap Space - 14 S 8th St
	Agenda Item 10B1 - Electric Superintendent Rpt
	Agenda Item 10C1 - Code Enf Officer Rpt
	Agenda Item 10C2 - Land Dev Agmt - The Delbar
	Agenda Item 10C2 - Fin Sec Agmt - The Delbar
	Agenda Item 10D1 - Park & Rec Dir Report
	Agenda Item 10E1 - Res 2023-4 - New Council Member
	Agenda Item 10F1 - Bills List
	Agenda Item 10F2 - Res 2023-2 - Revised Wage Schedule 2023
	Agenda Item 10G1 - Comm Dev Mgr Report
	News Article - Jan 3rd Council Mtg

